UNITED STATES EK’JZQGNMEN;FAL PROTECTION AGENCY

k¢
£ REGION 4
N SAM NLINN
Vg S AILANTA FEDERAL CENTLR

0i PORSYTH STREET
AYLANTA GEORGIA 303 8868

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECE{PT REQUESTED FEB 16 2011

Mr. Timothy Jones

Tyson Foods, {nc.

2200 Don Tyson Parkway
Springdale, Arkansas 72762

SUBIECT:  Tyson Foods, Tne.
Consent Agreement and Final Order
Docket No. FPCRA-04-2011-2001(b)

Viear Mr. Jones:

Encloscd please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreernent and Final Order
{CAFQO) that resolves the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986
(EPCRA) matter {Dovket No. EPCRA4-2011-2001¢b}} involving Tysen Foods, Ine. The
CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became
effective on the datc ol the filing.

Also enclosed, please find a copy of the “Notice of Securities and Exchange Comunission
Registranms” Duty to Disclose Environmensal Legal Proceedings.” This document puts you on
natice of your potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any
enviromnental enforcement actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). IF
vou have any guestions with regards to the SEC s environmensal disclosure reguirements. you
may refer to the contact phone number at the bottom of the SEC Notice.

If you have any questions, please call My, Deanne Grant at (404) 562-9291.
Sincerely,
W
L/p\_,g‘ ~rll.f2{,om--—

{aron B. Falconer, Chief
EPCRA Enforcement Section

Fnclosures

Inlernet Addrass (URLY » heioiesaew epa.gov
Rexycled/Roryuiabie - Prniad with Venetatde 04 Sased inks on Reoyried Paper INimimum 309% Pastoongumar)


http:hrto;JiWWWep<.l.gov

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4

IN THE MATTER OF: } =3
3 .y D

Tyson Foods, Inc. 3 Ducket Number: EPCRA-04-2011-2008(by

) =

Respondent. 3 ; {i_

: L

CONSENT AGREEMERT AND FINAL ORDER -

I Nature of the Action
1. This is a ¢ivil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive

Envirosmental Response, Compoensation, and Liability Act {(CERCLA}, 83 amended, 42 U.8.C.
§ 9609 and Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act
{EPTRA). 42 U.S.C. § 11045 and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing
Administrative Assessmerst of Civil Penaltics, and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of
Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified al 40 CF.R. Part 22, Complainant is the Director of the
Alr, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division, Regiun 4, United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) Respondent 18 Tyson Foods, Inc.

2. Counmpluinant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement
purstant o 40 CFR. § 22.18(h) and desire to resolve this matter and seitie the allegations
described herein without 4 formal hearing. Thorefore, without the taking of any evidence or
testimony, the muking of any argurment, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in
accordance with 40 C F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), this Consent Agrcement and Final Order
{CAFO) will silnultaneously conunence and conciude this matter.

1L Preliminary Statements

3, The authority 10 take action under Section 18 of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 8509 and
Section 328 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11045, is vested in the Administrator of EPA. The
Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority under CERCLA and under EPCRA 1o the
Regienal Administrators by EPA Delegations 14-31 and 22-3-A, both dated May 11, 1994, The
Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redelegated to the Director, Air, Pesticides and Toxics
Management Division, the authority uder CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated
March 8, 1999, and updated August 6, 2004, and the authority under EPCRA by EPA Region 4
Delegation 22-3- A, dated November 8, 1994, Pursuant to these delegations, the Director of the
Ajr, Pesticides and Toxics Munagement Division has the authority o commence an enforcement
action as the Complainant in this matter.

4. Respondent, Tyson Foods, Inc., does business in the State of Mississippi.



3. Respongdent s a "person” as defined in Scetion 32%(7) of EPCRA, 42 US.C
§ HIM9(73 and Section IN1(21 of CERCLA, 42 U1L.5.C. § 9601121}

6. Respondent has a "facility” as that term is defined by Section 1019} of CERTULA,
42 11.5.C. § 9601(9) and by Sevtion 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11049(4).

7. Respondent’s facility is located at 1785 Interplex Drive, Vicksburg, Mississippi
VLRI

8. Respondent is an “owner or operator” of the factlity as that term s defined by
Section 101(20KA) of CERCLA, 42 US.C. § 960120} A).

I CPA’s Allegations of Violations

Violation of Section 103(a) of CERCLA

9, Section 102{a; of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9602(a), required the Administrator of
EPA to publish a Jist of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when released
into the environment, may present substantial danger to public bealth or welfare or the
environment and to promulgate regulations cstablishing the quantity of any hazardous substance
the redease of which was required o be reported under Section 103¢a) of CERCLA, 42 US.C.
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended such a list, including the corresponding reportable
guantitics (RQ) for those substances, This list initially published on April 4, 1985 {50 Fed, Reg.
13474} is periodically amended.

10. Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.5.C. § 9603(a), and the regulations found at
40 C.F.R. § 302.6, require a person in charge of a facility or vessel (o immediately notify the
National Response Center {NRC), us s00n as he or she has knowledge of a release of a hazardous
substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal to, or greater than the RQ.

i1, Respondent was in charge of the faeility during the relevant peried described
below,

12, Ammonia is a “hazardous substance” as that term is defined by Section 10114}
of CERCLA, 42 U1.8.C. § 9601{14), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in 40 CF.R.
& 3024,

13, ©Onlune 9, 201G, Respondent had a release of amunonia above the RO at the
facility.

14, Respondent viclated the notification requirements of Section 103(a) of CERCLA,
42 U.8.C. § 9603{a}, by failing to immediately notify the NRC as soon as Respondent had
knowledge of the release of ammonia in an amount cqual 10 or greater than its RQ at
Respondent’s facility and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 109 of
CERCLA, 42 US.C. § 9609,
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15. Parsuant to Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19,
EPA may assess a penlty not 1o exceed 337,500 for each violation of Section (03(a) of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 96(13(a), that occurred after January 12, 2009, Each day a violation
of Scetion 103 countinues constitutes a separate viclation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of
CERCLA, 42 UB.C. § 9609, may be assessed by Administrative Order,

Violations of Section 304(as of EPCRA

16, Section 304{a} of EPCRA, 42 US.C, § 11004{a} and the reguiations found at
40 C F.R. Part 355, Subpant C, require the ownsr or operator of a facility at which hazardous
cherpicals are produced, used or stored, 1o immediately notify the State Emergency Response
Commission (SERC) and Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) when there has been a
release of 1 CERCLA hazardous substance or an EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an
amount cueal to or greater than the reportable quantity,

17, Respondeat was the owner or aperator of the {acility during the relevant period,
described below,

18. At all times refevant to this malier, the facility produced, uscd, or stured a
“hazardous chenucs!™ as delined under Section 31 1{ey of EPCRA, 42 U.5.C. § 11021{e} and
uidler 29 CER, § 1916.1200(¢).

19.  Ammonia is an “extremely hazardous substance™ as that term is defined by
Section 3293} of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in 40
C.ER. Part 355, Apps. A& B.

0. OnJune 9, 2010, Respondent had a release of ammonia above the R(Q at the
facility.

2} Respondent violated the notitication requirements of Scction 304(a) of EFCRA,
42 U.S.C. §11064(a) by failing to immediately notify the SERC and LEFC as soon as
Respondent had knowledge of the release of ammonia in an amount equal to or greater than the
RQ at Respondent’s facility, and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under Seclion
325 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. §11045.

Viplations of Section 304t of EPCRA

22. Section 304(¢) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §11004(c} and the regulations found at
40 C.EFR. Part 355, Subpart C, require the owaer or operator of a tacility at which hazardons
chemicals are produced, used or stored, 1o provide a wrilten follow-up emergency notice to the
SERC and LEPC when there has been a release of a CERCLA hazardous sibstance or an
EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an amount egual (0 or greater than the reportable
quantity.
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23, Respondent was the owner or operator of the facility during the relevant period,
described below,

24, Arall droes relevant to this matter, the facility produced, used. or stored
“hazardous chemicals” as defined under Section 311{e} of EPCRA 42 US.C. § 11021{e) and
under 28 C.ER, § 1910.1200(c).

25, Ammonid is an "extremely hazardous substance” as that term is delined by
Section 3293 of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in
40 CFR. Part 355, Apps. A& B.

26, OnJune 9, 2010, Respondens bad a release of ammonia above the RQ at the
tacility,

27.  Respondent violated the notification requirements of Section 304(c) of EPCRA,
42 (J.S.C. § 11004(¢), by failing to provide & written follow-up emergency aotice to the SERC
amd LEPC when there had been a rolesse of ammena in an amount equal 10 or greater than the
RQ at Respondent’s facility, and is therefore subjoct 10 the assessment of penalties under Section
325 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. §11045,

28.  Pursuant to Section 325(b} of EPCRA, 42 U1.S.C. § 11045¢h), and 40 CF.R.
Purt 19, EPA may assess a penalty of not more than $37.500 for each violation of Sections
304¢a) and {c) of EPCRA and 42 U 5.C. §§ 11004{a} and (¢) that ocourred after Janunry 12,
2009, Civil penalties under Scotion 325(h) of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11045(b}, may be assessed
by Administrative Chider.

V. Consent Agreement

29.  ¥or the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdiclional allegations
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above.

3. Respondent walves any right (G contest the allegations and its right to appeal (he
praposed final order accompanying the Consent Agrecinent,

31,  Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees 1o pay the civil penalty as
set forth in this CAFO,

32, Respondent certifies that as of the date of its exeontion of this CAFO, it is in
compliance with all relevant reguirements of CERCLA and EPCRA.

33, Compliance with the CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained
herein. This CAFO shall aot otherwise affect any Hability of Responden to the United States
other than as cxpressed herein. Netther EPA ner Complainant waives any right 1o bring an
enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state statute, regulation or
permit, to initiate an action for imminenl and substantial endangerment, or 1o pursue criminal
enforcement.



34,  Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this
CAFQ, The parties agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this
CAFOD Is consistent with the applicable requirenents of CERCILA and EPCRA,

V. Fingl Order

35.  Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of FIVE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED
DOLILAKRS ($5,80) for the CERCLA viclation which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the
effective date of this CAFO.

36.  Respondent shall pay the CERCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashier’s ot
certified check, payable to "EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund” to one of the following
addresses:

BY MAIL BY QVERNIGHT]

1.5, Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank

Superfund Payments Attention: Natalie Pearson (314) 418-4087
Cincinnati Finance Center 1003 Convention Plaza

P.O. Box $7%76 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL.

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000 St. Louts, Missouri 63101

The check shall reference on s face the name snd the Docket Number of the CAFO.

37.  Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of TWENTY THREE THOUSAND
DOLLARS {$23,000) fur the EPCRA violations which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of
the effective date of this CAFO.

38.  Respondent shall pay the EPCRA penalty by forwarding a cashier’s or certified
check payable to “Treasurcr, Unitod States of America,” to one of the following addresses:

BY MAIL BY QVERNIGHT

U.S. Environmental Pratection Agency U.S. Bank

Fines and Penalties Atention: Natalie Pearson (314) 4184087
Cincianati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza

P.O. Box 979077 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL

St Lonis, Missouri 63197-8000 St. Louls, Missouri 63101

The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFQ.

36.  Atthe tme of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of cach check, and
a written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAF(,  the following
persons at the following addresses;



Regional Hearing Clerk
.S, EPA Region 4

61 Forsyth Btreet, S.W,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Deanne D. Grant

US EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxicy Management Division
&1 Forsyth Street, 8. W,

Atlanta, Georgia 303303

Saandt Wilson

U.S. EPA, Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability
&1 Forsyth Sueet, 8. W,

Atlanta, Georgis 30303

40.  For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be
catitled, and agrees not to atternpt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made
pursuant to this CAFQ. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall
constitute # viclation of this CAFQ,

41.  Pugsuant to 31 U.S.C, § 3717, EPA 15 entitled to assess interest andd penalties on
debts owed to the United States and a charge 10 cover the cost of processing and handling a
delinquent clairo, Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective
date of this CAFQ if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Imterest will be assessed at the
rate extablished by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 US.C, § 3717, A charge will be
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, including processing und handling costs and
attorney fees. In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that
retnains delinquent more than ninety (30} days after payment is due.

42. Camplainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this
matter.

43.  This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondernt, its successors, and assigns,

44,  The following individual is authortzed fo receive service for EPA in this
proceeding:

Caron B, Falconer

LLS. EPA, Region 4

Alr, Pestictdes & Toxics Management Division
61 Forsyith Street, 8.W.,

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

{404) 362-3431
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45,  Each undersigned represemtative of the partics to this CAFO certifies that he or
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that

party fo it.
V1. Effective Date

46, The effective date of this CAFQ shall be the date on which the CAFQ is filed with
the Regional Hearing Clerk.

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:

Tyson Foods, Inc.

By: Qb;t_a A éﬁk\ﬁd‘ﬁ@-ﬁ {Signature) Dates __[-281~ I\

Name: 4G\ A, &ﬁ&‘m WA {Typed or Printed)

Title: ){&iﬂ% {mmﬁiz:;g jjm:;§£ {Typed or Printed)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agoncy

)\ M ganTi Date: | 2{15 [1=

B erf}‘k Bunister, Director
Alr, Pesticides & Toxics

Management Divigion
Region 4

74 s
APPROVED AND 50 ORDERED this /¢ day of Fob e ,f/’bi

;ﬁ%,._ s A pt

Susan B. Schub
Regional Tudicial Officer




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 hereby certify thar I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing

Consent Agreement and Final Order, [n the Matter of Tyson Foods, Ing., Docket No.

EPCRA04-2011.-2001{h), on the parties listed below in the manner indicated:

Caren B, Falconer {Via EPA’s internal mail)
U.5. EPA, Region 4

Alr, Pesticides and Toxics Management

61 Forsyth Streat

Atlanta, GA 30303

Robert Caplan (Via EPA’s internal mail)
U.S. EPA, Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability

61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, GA 30303

Mr. Timothy Jones {Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested)
Tyson Foods, Inc.,

2200 Don Tyson Parkway

Springdale, AR 72762

s

o .. P T
Patricia A. Batlock, Regional
United States Envirommental
Protection Agency, Region 4
Atlanta Federal Center

61 Forsyth Street, 8. W,
Atlanta, GA 30303

(4034} 562.9511
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This form was originated by.> LU Wilson o '2-,/ 4 _A?
{(Namwe}
in the Reglon 4, ORC, DEA u {408) 5829304
{Offiee) \ {Telepbone Number)
CI Nep-3F Sudicial OrderiConsent Becree ' Administrative Ovdec/Consant
USAG COLLECTS | FMOG COLLECTS PAYMENT

: Oversight Pilling - - Caat Puckage required:

D SF Jundicial Order/Consent Dooome Seut with bill

DOJ COLLECTS
] Mot sent with bi

; I Oversight Biling - Cost Paciage not required
[ musisan originat dein [ Thisis 2 modification
PAYEE: 7;}5&” Feods e
(Mame of person andlor Conmpauy/Municipaily makiog U8 payrwnt)

The Total Dellar Amousst of the Recsivables §__CERLLf - & 740 EPcai 23 008 —
{(if instalinwots, 2itach schedule of amounts and respectivyrdiie dates. See Other side of this form]

The Came Dockat Nesabers ERPcisg G 20il- 3001 (4)

The Site Specific Superfuusi Accoant Numsber;

The Desigmited Regiooai/Headquarters Progras: Offiee:

o ——— -

The IFMS Accounts Receivable Control Number in: Dote

i you have any quesilons, please calle_ o O thee Erasociad Management Sectioanatz

A JUDICIAL ORDERS: Copies of thix form with wy aitached tapy of the tront page of the FINAL JUDICIAL ORDE
shoukd be nailed to:
L Delsi Tracking (4Bcer L Origloating Gifler (EAD)
Envirecmwnial Enlorcriant Section 3 Desiguated Program (e
Depariwwst of Jrstior RM 1547

P.A). Box 7611, Renjapim Fraskii Saatioe

EXS: Lopies of Uk form with au attached copy of the front page of the Admésistrative Order should e fo:

3. Desigoated Program Oifice
i Regiotmt Counsel (EAD)
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